ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
JO NT MEETI NG
SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SCOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 12, 2007
4:07 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES
Senat or Bettye Davis, Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Vice Chair
Senator Kim Elton
Senator Fred Dyson

HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES
Representati ve Peggy WIson, Chair
Representati ve Anna Fai rcl ough
Representati ve Mark Neuman
Representati ve Sharon G ssha
Representati ve Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT

SENATE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES
Senat or John Cowdery

HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES

Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senat or Con Bunde
Senat or Johnny Ellis

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

Overview. Reclaimng Futures project
HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

JT. S/H HES COW TTEES -1- April 12, 2007



No previous action to record.
W TNESS REQ STER

Tom Begi ch, project director

Recl ai m ng Futures

Anchor age, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented overvi ew

Wl liam H tchcock, judicial fellow

Recl ai m ng Futures

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in overview

Laura Burney Nissen, director

Recl ai m ng Futures

Portl and, OR

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in overview

Nol an Qgl e- Endr esen
Anchor age, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in overview

Li nda Moffitt, juvenile justice fellow

Recl ai m ng Futures

Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in overview

Andre Rosay, evaluation conmttee

Recl ai m ng Futures

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in overview

Karin Schaff, treatnent fellow

Recl ai m ng Futures

Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in overview

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CO CHAIR PEGGY WLSON called the joint nmeeting of the Senate and
House Health, Education and Social Services Standing Conmittees
to order at 4:07:14 PM Present at the call to order were
Senator Thomas and Co-Chair Davis; Representatives Fairclough,
Neurman, Ci ssna, and Co-Chair W/Ison. Senator Elton Senator Dyson
and Representative Gardner arrived soon thereafter.

JT. S/H HES COW TTEES - 2- April 12, 2007



OVERVI EW RECLAI M NG FUTURES PRQJECT

CO-CHAIR W!I son announced t he conmi ttee woul d hear a
presentation on reclaimng futures.

TOM BEG CH, project director of Reclaimng Futures (RF),
introduced hinself and his co-presenters, and showed a video
with subjects of the RF project and the process they go through
to get their lives back in track.

4:17:40 PM

LAURA NI SSEN, RF director, said that the state of Alaska is
| ooking for ideas on how to keep its young people from joining
gangs, and RF can help with this. She commended the work of the
Anchorage RF team and said that it is becomng a national
| eader in the program She outlined the history of the RF
project, which was begun in reaction to a trend of nore and nore
youth entering juvenile detention facilities. The program has
reinvented the juvenile justice system by holding kids
accountable for mstakes and offering them help to get out of
the cycle. The program has focused on what kids wth problens
need to be successful; Anchorage becanme one of ten nation-w de
test comunities in 1999.

4:21:37 PM

She said that the nodel of RF is flexible enough to work for a
variety of different comunities. She explained the different
st eps of t he RF program i ncl udi ng drug screeni ngs,
psychol ogi cal assessnents, developnent and initiation of care
pl ans, service engagenent, and transitioning into a support-free
life. Few communities provide this |level of attention across the
United States, but they are all effective in reducing crine and
associ ated costs.

4:27:59 PM

She cited data to show the positive effect of the RF project
across the country; there have been inprovenents across al

sites in the country and in Anchorage. Locally, an evaluation
team found that youth wth individual service plans in the
program were nine tinmes nore likely to conplete treatnent;
service contacts aided in treatnent conpletion as well. She
concluded by saying that young ©people are successfully

JT. S/H HES COW TTEES - 3- April 12, 2007



conpleting this program and are accessing positive commnity
opportunities in new ways.

She added that there is a lot of work to be done with the
program and agai nst youth addiction; RF is ready to nove from a
pilot program to a full-on national program She assured the
commttee that such a program would be a great success in
Juneau; the programis |like a bridge across a dangerous canyon
for a lot of youth.

4:32:51 PM

MASTER WLLIAM H TCHCOCK, Children's Court Master for the
Anchorage Superior Court and judicial fellow for RF, said that a
court must be willing to conmt to the program for the system of
care to be built; he related his history with the project, and
tal ked about how RF nmade the juvenile court take a broader | ook
at its disciplinary techniques. Screening was inproved, and
different arnms of the courts began to work together nore
effectively. Instead of re-punishing Kkids because of their
failures, progress in life skills was tracked. Managenent of the
cases has been greatly inproved with the individualized service
pl ans. He explained the service plan process in nore detail, and
said that he often hears back from kids as they nove through and
conpl ete the RF process.

4:38:31 PM

He said that the process relies on collaborative comunity work,
and nmany conmunities all over the state could nmake this
successful. He introduced Nolan Ogl e- Endresen, a graduate of the
Anchorage RF program

4:39: 35 PM

NCLAN OGLE- ENDRESEN, a graduate of the Anchorage RF program
expl ained his history with youth probation, which didn't provide
support or structure. He began the RF program at the age of 16,
and it changed his life in nyriad ways. The structure was
i medi ate and all-enconpassing, unlike his previous encounters
with juvenile justice. Wien he left the program he reencountered
his problems wth drugs and alcohol, but had the skills he
needed to overcone them on his own; he said he w shes that the
program could be there for all the people who need it. Hs life
and future are bright because of RF.

4:44: 05 PM

JT. S/H HES COW TTEES -4- April 12, 2007



CO CHAIR WLSON t hanked M. gl e- Endresen.

MR. BEG CH thanked the committee again, and said that it's a
pl easure to see graduates of the program like M. gl e-Endresen.
He said that the program can change the way the justice system
operates for juveniles; nmany of RF s elenments of treatnent are
being applied across the board in Anchorage, and the tools are
effective elsewhere. Youth aren’'t just held accountable for
their actions, but are treated as well. Over 98 percent of the
kids entering the juvenile justice system in Anchorage now are
being treated with elenments of the RF program The original
funding received by RF from the Robert Wod Johnson Foundation
was used to develop the tools of the program not for the actual
treatnment; now the well-planned tenplate can be used across the
state. The treatnment is working because it's neaningful.

4:48: 28 PM

He said that there are simlar efforts across the country that
stress evidence-based treatnment; those approaches are inportant,
as well as reallocation of resources. In this case, the system
has been supportive of the programs efforts. He encouraged the
committee to continue to support treatnent-based services
fundi ng, because it's so effective; $3,000 worth of treatnent is
the sane as $40,000 worth of incarceration. The cost of the
justice system continues to rise, but RF is an approach that
keeps kids fromreturning to the systemin the long run. As new
RF sites conme online, they should be enbraced and support ed.
There are many individuals involved in the program who aren’'t
necessarily state enployees; they're just interested in working
with the program Breaking the cycle of substance abuse wll
keep kids fromreturning to the justice system

4:53:52 PM

SENATOR DYSON asked for elaboration on how the program could
integrate with the Ofice of Children’s Services (OCS) and the
Depart ment of Juvenile Justice (DJJ).

MR. BEG CH said that Departnment of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) Comm ssioner Karleen Jackson has been very supportive of
t he program and a shared approach towards comuni cati on.

4:55: 06 PM

JT. S/H HES COW TTEES - 5- April 12, 2007



MASTER HI TCHCOCK said that there are sonetinmes cases of dual
jurisdiction where a child is in need of aid and is also a
delinquent. A lot of the kids in the RF program need nenta
health care, and the OCS has been helpful from the beginning
with providing this treatnent.

MR. BEQ CH added that kids in the child welfare system are often

part of the juvenile justice system as well, and he's hopeful
that positive inpacts in one area wll |lead to others.
4:57:07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for clarification on how the RF
nodel is being used with other youth outside the program

MR. BEGQ CH said that kids com ng through the system w thout the
benefit of RF were tracked to see their treatnent progression.
98 percent were receiving evidence-based treatnent, which shows
that the systemis changing for the better.

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked if there is trouble finding
treatnent beds, and if there is a wait for nental health
treat nent servi ces.

MR BEGCH said that the RF has recently received additional
funding for nental health assessnents, and said that Karin
Schaff coul d better answer the question.

KARI N SCHAFF, treatnment fellow for the RF, said that capacity in
the program is an issue, but with collaborations it has been
hugely inproved. She detailed the inprovenents in the nental
heal th aspect of the program

MR BEACH added that swiftness in responding to need is
i nportant to keeping people's faith in the program

5:00: 43 PM

CO-CHAIR DAVI S asked for information on how cases are found and
f unded.

MR. BEG CH expl ai ned where initial funding came from and how it
was used to cone up with a business plan for RF. Treatnent
funding has been received from different foundations and from
the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority (AVHTA). He said that
t he nunbers of youth treated by RF will be greatly increasing.

JT. S/H HES COW TTEES - 6- April 12, 2007



5:03:35 PM

LI NDA MOFFI TT, juvenile justice fellow with the RF, said that
the program was originally designed for vyouth wthin the
juvenile justice system Now there are two tracks, including
those youth who haven't ever been to court. Oher changes
include increased initial screenings, additional nental health
screeni ng, and assessors going to the DJJ every week to nonitor
youth; this increases the likelihood of kids staying in the
pr ogram

She added that a local policy has been instituted that
determ nes when a youth will conme in for assessment; the process
has becone nore objective than subjective. The change in focus
to a nore results-based approach is a nmjor inprovenent in the
DJJ.

5:06: 56 PM

MR. BEQ CH said that now that every youth in the DJJ system w ||
be getting a screening, nore people wll be affected by the
program

5:07:38 PM

CO CHAIR DAVIS asked who trains the probation officers in RF
skills.

MR BEGQCH replied that he will be training staff tonorrow in
the capitol; training is easily replicable and the skill set is
transferabl e.

5:08: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA said that outcone neasures need to be
tracked over a period of time to determne how effective a
program is, and asked how |long the program has been collecting
evi dence. She referenced a study done in the Al aska that showed
that fidelity to nodel is a problem

5:10: 05 PM
M5. NISSEN said that RF is an amal ganation of several other
evi dence based approaches; the six steps of the nodel were

broken into two parts: a national nodel, and |ocal nodels. The
data output from local program has yet to come out, but it's

JT. S/H HES COW TTEES -7- April 12, 2007



evident that the system can be changed. What’'s not known yet is
whet her the outcones are positive.

5:12:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA said that system change isn't necessarily
evi dence- based; treatnent prograns have shown little fidelity to
nodels in the past, and RF appears to be changing only the
systemthus far.

5:13:30 PM

M5. SCHAFF said that the data was tracked begi nning in 2003, and
tracking wll continue; all tracking has built-in fidelity
neasures, so RF will be staying true to the nodel.

5:14: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA said that there nust be a way to eval uate
the system and asked how to get nore information about the
actual neasures.

M5. SCHAFF said that she will provide that information to the
conmittee.

5:15: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN sai d that he sees a connection between RF
and the OCS; he asked for an explanation of the relationship,
and how eval uation data woul d change between different areas of
the state.

MR. BEG CH said that the OCS has been highly involved in RF and
is working with a case-nmanagenent approach. The partnership wll
depend on how they can be involved in the future; they' re both
in the sane famly of work

He added that the program has an active evaluation comittee
whi ch uses tracki ng nechani sns.

5:18:12 PM

ANDRE ROSAY, evaluation conmittee nenber with the RF, said that
the evaluation is taking two directions: reviewing old files,
and current youth in the program The commttee found that youth
having famly or friend helpers leads to conpleted treatnent; a
shared web-based system is the second part of the evaluation,

JT. S/H HES COW TTEES - 8- April 12, 2007



which can be used throughout the state. The nodel wll be as
applicable in other comunities.

5:19:48 PM
CO CHAIR WLSON asked if helpers are paid or if they volunteer.

MR. BEGQ CH said that they're people identified by the youth as a
person of trust involved in their life outside the program
These hel pers are instrunental in getting the youth through the
program RF is devel oping an advisory group of program graduates
and their famlies to beconme paid professional hel pers.

5:21:47 PM

CO-CHAIR WLSON asked if there were small communities in the
original pilot prograns.

MR BEGCH replied that there were; all the sites were
different.

CO- CHAIR WLSON asked how critical a job would be to the youth
succeeding in or after the program and commented that that
finding a job can be difficult in Al aska.

MR BEGCH replied that he believes that a key conponent to
success is graduation; skills and opportunities do need to be
built, so his opinion is that the job connection is critical.

5:25:12 PM

CO- CHAIR WLSON asked if the program will give kids enough self
esteemto help them succeed in a small village.

MR. OGLE- ENDRESEN said that the program does its best to give
ki ds a post-graduati on support group.

MR. BEG CH tal ked about his history working w th graduates of
t he program

5:27:20 PM
MR. OGLE- ENDRESEN sai d that he feels good about the RF program
M5. NI SSEN said that the job issue is a good exanple of how no

one system can solve the whole problem Youth enploynent
coalitions are interested in the RF because it prepares the kids

JT. S/H HES COW TTEES -9- April 12, 2007



for enploynment aid; a youth |eadership opportunity is what Kkids
need to becone productive nmenbers of comunities.

CO-CHAIR DAVIS conmented that M. gl e-Endresen seenms to have
made opportunities for hinself.

5:29:49 PM

She added that she hopes expansion of RF will be possible, and
t hanked the comm ttee for the presentation.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said that she |ikes hearing from young
men and wonen who have opportunities to advance thensel ves and
their Ilives. She conplinented M. (gl e-Endresen  on his
t esti nony.

5:31: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER said that children can’'t be given self-
esteent one has to learn it.

CO CHAIR DAVIS asked if the program wanted to ask for anything
fromthe conmttee.

MR BEA CH said that he wants to see the l|legislature share in
the program and be supportive of it; funding needs to go to
evi dence- based prograns; eventual resource reallocation may be
needed; and innovative change needs to be enbraced and accept ed.

COCHAIR WLSON said that the commttee has been working on
health care spending for nonths, and wusing results-based
prograns has been one of the nmain goals. There being no further
business to cone before the commttee, she then adjourned the
meeting at 5:36:43 PM

JT. S/H HES COW TTEES -10- April 12, 2007



